[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Council Meeting
3 March 2021
Time

5.45 pm

Venue

Virtual Meeting

Public Meeting?

YES

Type of meeting

Full Council

Membership (Quorum for this meeting is 15 Councillors)
Mayor
Deputy Mayor

Cllr Claire Darke (Lab)
Cllr Greg Brackenridge (Lab)

Labour
Cllr Obaida Ahmed
Cllr Mary Bateman
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE
Cllr Olivia Birch
Cllr Dr Paul John Birch J.P.
Cllr Alan Bolshaw
Cllr Ian Brookfield
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Alan Butt
Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Jacqui Coogan
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Val Evans

Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Celia Hibbert
Cllr Keith Inston
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal
Cllr Rashpal Kaur
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr Asha Mattu
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN
Cllr Louise Miles
Cllr Beverley Momenabadi

Conservative

Independent Member

Cllr Paul Appleby
Cllr Payal Bedi-Chadha
Cllr Simon Bennett
Cllr Jonathan Crofts
Cllr Christopher Haynes
Cllr Sohail Khan
Cllr Paul Singh
Cllr Udey Singh
Cllr Wendy Thompson
Cllr Jonathan Yardley

Cllr Harman Banger

Cllr Lynne Moran
Cllr Anwen Muston
Cllr Phil Page
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Clare Simm
Cllr Mak Singh
Cllr Paul Sweet
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Cllr Martin Waite

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Jaswinder Kaur
01902 550320 or jaswinder.kaur@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Item No.

Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS
1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of previous meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
[To receive minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 September 2020.]

4

Communications
[To receive the Mayor’s announcements]

5

State of City Address
[To receive the Leader of the Council’s statement regarding the City.]

DECISION ITEMS
6

Final Budget Report 2021-2022 (Pages 13 - 20)
[To consider and determine the Council’s budgetary provisions for the forthcoming
municipal year:





Capital Programme 2020-2021 to 2024-2025 quarter three review and 20212022 to 2025-2026 budget strategy
Treasury Management Strategy 2021-2022
Final Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024
Council Tax Formal Resolutions.]

7

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report - 2019/2020 (Pages 21 - 44)
[To approve the Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 – 2020.]

8

Decisions Made Under Urgent Action Powers (Pages 45 - 54)
[To receive a report on urgent decisions taken by the Council.]

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Meeting of the Council
Minutes - 16 September 2020
Attendance
Mayor
Deputy Mayor

Cllr Claire Darke (Lab)
Cllr Greg Brackenridge (Lab)

Labour
Cllr Obaida Ahmed
Cllr Mary Bateman
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE
Cllr Olivia Birch
Cllr Dr Paul John Birch J.P.
Cllr Alan Bolshaw
Cllr Ian Brookfield
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Alan Butt
Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Jacqui Coogan
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Val Evans

Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Celia Hibbert
Cllr Keith Inston
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal
Cllr Rashpal Kaur
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN
Cllr Louise Miles
Cllr Beverley Momenabadi
Cllr Lynne Moran
Cllr Anwen Muston

Conservative
Cllr Paul Appleby
Cllr Payal Bedi-Chadha
Cllr Simon Bennett
Cllr Jonathan Crofts
Cllr Sohail Khan

Employees
Tim Johnson
David Pattison
Mark Taylor
Ross Cook
Ian Fegan
Charlotte Johns
Richard Lawrence
Claire Nye
David Watts
Laura Phillips
Jaswinder Kaur

Cllr Phil Page
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Clare Simm
Cllr Mak Singh
Cllr Paul Sweet
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Cllr Martin Waite

Independent
Cllr Paul Singh
Cllr Udey Singh
Cllr Wendy Thompson
Cllr Jonathan Yardley

Cllr Harman Banger

Chief Executive
Director of Governance
Deputy Chief Executive
Director of City Environment
Director of Communications and External Relations
Director of Strategy
Director of Regeneration
Director of Finance
Director of Adult Services
Head of Democratic and Support Services
Democratic Services Manager
The proceedings opened with Prayers

Page 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Christopher Haynes and
Councillor John Rowley.

2

Declarations of interest
The following declarations of interest had been made:
Agenda item 9 – Decisions Made Under Urgent Action Powers
Councillor
Linda Leach
Sandra Samuels MBE

3

Interest
Disclosable pecuniary
interest
Disclosable pecuniary
interest

Reason
A business owner who
received a grant.
A business owner who
received a grant.

Minutes of previous meeting
The Deputy Mayor proposed, and the Leader of the Council seconded, and it was
resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 4 March 2020, be agreed as a
correct record and signed accordingly by the Mayor.

4

Communications
The Deputy Mayor announced that he would read out the Mayor’s
Communications on behalf of the Mayor.
1. COVID 19
The Deputy Mayor paid tribute to all those lost to Covid-19. The Deputy Mayor
extended the deepest sympathies of the Council to grieving families and
friends who had lost loved ones.
The Deputy Mayor added he was proud of the entire workforce who all had a
part to play in the way the Council had responded and the City, by working as
one to manage the crisis and ensuring the most vulnerable residents in the
City were looked after.
The Deputy Mayor encouraged all to continue to stay alert and safe while
working to relight the City following the in the City’s motto ‘out of darkness
cometh light’.
2. Appointment of Honorary Recorder
The Deputy Mayor was delighted to announce that His Honour Michael
Chambers QC had accepted the role as Honorary Recorder. He takes over
from His Honour James Burbidge QC who left the role as resident Judge on 8

Page 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

April 2020 to take up a post in the City of Worcester. The Deputy Mayor
added this would be an excellent opportunity to maintain and develop a strong
association between the Council and the local Judiciary.
3. Queen’s Honours List
The Deputy Mayor was delighted to announce that three people with
connections to Wolverhampton were recognised as part of the Queen’s
Birthday Honours:
 Amarjit Cheema was awarded an OBE for services to Education.
 Dr Helen Macpherson Hibbs was awarded an MBE for services to NHS
leadership.
 Christine McGowan from Whitmore Reans was awarded an MBE for
services in Developing Arts in Wolverhampton.
The Deputy Mayor extended his sincere congratulations to Amarjeet, Helen
and Christine and confirmed that the Mayor had written a letter to all three on
behalf of the Council.
4. Queen’s Award for the Voluntary Sector
The Deputy Mayor was delighted to announce that in June 2020 there were
two worthy winners of the Queen’s Award for the Voluntary Sector;


Stratton Street Community Centre and



The Birch Thompson (Memorial Fund) Trust

The Deputy Mayor confirmed that the Mayor had sent a letter of
congratulations to both organisations on behalf of the Council.
5. Armed Forces Week 2020
The Deputy Mayor reported that Armed Forces Week began with a short
private flag-raising ceremony on Monday 22 June 2020 outside the Civic
Centre.
The Deputy Mayor added that throughout the week there were online virtual
campaigns held in remembrance, highlighting our Armed Forces past, present
and future.
6. Windrush Day
The Deputy Mayor informed Councillors that on the Monday 22 June the
Mayor and Councillor Sandra Samuels OBE, raised the flag to commemorate
the 72nd anniversary of the Empire Windrush, the first ship that bought people
from the Caribbean to the UK to acknowledge the enormous contribution they
and their descendants have made.

Page 7

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7. VE Day VJ Day 2020
The Deputy Mayor reported that unfortunately due to the Covid-19 pandemic
no services were held at the Cenotaph for the 75th anniversary of VE day on
Friday 8 May 2020.
The Deputy Mayor informed Councillors that on Saturday 15 August 2020 the
Royal British Legion held a small private service of remembrance for VJ Day
at the Burma Star Memorial opposite the Cenotaph , St. Peter’s Square.
The Deputy Mayor informed Councillors that individual messages for both
events were sent by the Mayor on behalf of the Council which was shared
online.
8. Wolverhampton Wanders
The Deputy Mayor was delighted to congratulate the Wolverhampton
Wanders Football Club for reaching the quarter finals in the Europa League
for the first time in almost 50 years.
5

Relighting Our City: City of Wolverhampton Council Recovery Commitment
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield presented the Relighting Our
City: City of Wolverhampton Council Recovery Commitment for approval. The report
outlined the Council’s commitment to continue to work with partners to support the
City to live with and recover from Covid-19. He introduced a presentation titled
‘Relighting Our City – Reset, Recover and Relight’.
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield advised that a restorative
approach was undertaken to develop the commitment by engaging with local people,
businesses as well as a focussed Citizen Panel meetings.
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield outlined the key themes:






Support people who need us most
Create more opportunities for young people
Generate more jobs and learning opportunities
Grow our vital local business
Stimulate vibrant high streets and communities

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield proposed the recommendation
and Councillor Louise Miles seconded the recommendation.
The report was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That the Relighting Our City: City of Wolverhampton Council’s Covid-19 recovery
commitment be approved.

Page 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

6

Our Climate Commitment
Councillor Steve Evans presented the Our Climate Commitment for approval. He
advised that the report was due to be considered at Council in April 2020 but had
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic. He outlined progress made around
Climate Change since the declaration of a Climate Emergency in July 2019.
Councillor Steve Evans highlighted the Council had reduced its carbon footprint by
45% to date and it was envisaged it would be reduced by a further 50% in the near
future.
Councillor Steve Evans added that consultation had taken place on the Our Climate
Commitment document with the Citizens Assembly in February 2020, engaging with
the public virtually using the hashtag #OneGreenGov and collaborating with
Sustainability West Midlands to develop the final document.
Councillor Steve Evans commended Councillor Barbara McGarrity as the Climate
Change Champion for raising the awareness of climate change and lead officers for
their hard work.
Councillor Steve Evans proposed the recommendation and Councillor John
Reynolds seconded the recommendation and commended the work undertaken by
the Head of Business Service and Project Manager (Climate Change) to progress
this work. He wished both well in their new roles.
The report was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That the Our Climate Commitment document be approved.

7

Safer Wolverhampton Partnership - Community Safety and Harm Reduction
Strategy 2020-2023
Councillor Jasbir Jaspal presented the Safer Wolverhampton Partnership Community Safety and Harm Reduction Strategy 2020-2023 for approval.
She advised that the strategy builds on the previous 2017-2020 strategy priorities as
a result of its successful outcomes. She outlined some of the successes and
challenges of the previous strategy. She advised that a place based approach would
be taken to deliver the strategy.
Councillor Jasbir Jaspal outlined the strategy’s overarching priorities moving forward
as;





Preventing harm
Harm reduction
Building community compacity
Reducing offending

Councillor Jasbir Jaspal added that following consideration by Cabinet the strategy
had been amended to strengthen the equalities implications and reinforce the links
between the strategy and the Anti-Social Behaviour Team.

Page 9

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Councillor Jasbir Jaspal proposed the recommendation and Councillor Linda Leach
seconded the recommendation.
The report was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That Safer Wolverhampton Partnership - Community Safety and Harm Reduction
Strategy 2020-2023 be endorsed.
8

Changes to the Constitution as a result of Covid-19 and other urgent changes
Councillor Paula Brookfield presented the Changes to the Constitution as a result of
Covid-19 and other urgent changes for approval. She outlined the five substantive
amendments to be made to the constitution and the rationale for making these
changes.
Councillor Paula Brookfield proposed the recommendations and Councillor Simon
Bennett seconded the recommendations.
The report was debated by Council.
Resolved:
1. That the amendments to the Constitution be approved.
2. That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to implement the changes.

9

Decisions Made Under Urgent Action Powers
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield presented the Decisions Made
Under Urgent Action Powers report for noting. The report detailed all the decisions
taken under Urgent Action Powers due to all Council meetings being cancelled due
to the Covid-19 pandemic.
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield proposed the recommendation
and Councillor Louise Miles seconded the recommendation.
The report was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That the decisions made under the Council’s Urgent Action Powers be noted.

10

Motions on Notice
The Deputy Mayor informed Council that the second motion on Covid-19 Tribute had
been withdrawn.
a.

COVID-19 Resolution
The Leader of the Council moved the following motion:

Page 10

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

That the City of Wolverhampton Council welcomes and is immensely grateful
for the hard work and commitment of its many frontline and key workers,
from health and social care staff, to refuse workers and council officers, who
have and continue to maintain essential services and support during the
current pandemic.
This Council also commends the response of many Wolverhampton
residents who have selflessly given their time and support to their neighbours
and families during this crisis.
COVID 19 in the City has taken its toll both in personal and financial losses,
and we urge the Government to keep to their word and commit to extra
funding to cover the funding gap caused by the pandemic. They must ensure
that local councils have everything they need to overcome this crisis.
Furthermore we call on Government to trust and respect local councils and
give us the powers we need to support our communities as it becomes
increasingly clear that the responsibility of preventing a second wave will be
through local lockdowns borne by local government.
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Ian Brookfield outlined the rationale for the
motion. Councillor Wendy Thompson seconded the motion and paid tribute to all
those involved in responding to the Covid-19 pandemic.
The motion was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That the motion on Covid-19 Resolution be agreed.
c. Reopening of libraries
Councillor Simon Bennett moved the following motion:
That without delay, the Council agrees to fully reopen the City’s libraries
incorporating Covid secure measures similar to the processes already
established in neighbouring authorities, following a change to government
guidance 4th July.
That this Council also notes the importance of libraries in providing, but not
limited to, the loaning of book, audio books, large print items as well as free
computer and internet access.
Councillor Simon Bennett outlined the rationale for the motion. Councillor Wendy
Thompson seconded the motion.
Councillor Stephen Simkins moved the following amendment to the motion:
This council’s priority is to its citizens’ safety and will return the Library
service to full operation on the advice of the Director of Public health. The
service is constantly under review.

Page 11

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

This Council notes the importance of libraries in providing, but not limited to,
the loaning of book, audio books, large print items as well as free computer
and internet access.
Councillor Stephen Simkins outlined the rationale for the proposed amendment.
Councillor John Reynolds seconded the amendment to the motion.
The amended motion was debated by Council.
Resolved:
That the following amended motion on re-opening libraries be agreed:
‘That this Council’s priority is to its citizens’ safety and will return the Library
service to full operation on the advice of the Director of Public Health. The
service is constantly under review. The Council notes the importance of libraries
in providing, but not limited to, the loaning of book, audio books, large print items
as well as free computer and internet access.’

Page 12

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Meeting of the City Council
3 March 2021
Report title

Final Budget Report 2021-2022

Referring body

Cabinet, 17 February 2021

Councillor to present
report

Councillor Louise Miles

Wards affected

All Wards

Cabinet Member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Ian Brookfield, Leader of the Council
Councillor Louise Miles, Resources

Accountable director

Tim Johnson, Chief Executive

Originating service

Strategic Finance

Accountable employee

Claire Nye
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Strategic Executive Board
Cabinet

Director of Finance
01902 550478
Claire.Nye@wolverhampton.gov.uk
5 February 2021
17 February 2021

Recommendations for decision:
The Council is recommended to approve:
Cabinet recommendations from the Capital Programme 2020-2021 to 2024-2025 Quarter
Three Review and 2021-2022 to 2025-2026 Budget Strategy
1.

Approve the revised City of Wolverhampton Council Capital Strategy;

2.

Approve the revised, medium term General Revenue account capital programme of
£316.4 million, an increase of £1.6 million from the previously approved programme, and
the change in associated resources.

Cabinet recommendations from the Treasury Management Strategy 2021-2022
1.

Approve the authorised borrowing limit for 2021-2022 to support the capital strategy as
required under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 to be set at £1,166.2
million (PI3, Appendix 3 of the Cabinet report); the forecast borrowing is below the
authorised borrowing limit.

Page 13

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.

Approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021-2022 as set out in
Appendix 1 of the Cabinet report.

3.

Approve the Annual Investment Strategy 2021-2022 as set out in Appendix 2 of the
Cabinet report.

4.

Approve the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators as set out in Appendix 3 of
the Cabinet report.

5.

Approve the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement setting out the
method used to calculate MRP for 2021-2022 as set out in Appendix 4 of the Cabinet
report.

6.

Approve the method used to calculate MRP for 2020-2021 as set out in the Annual MRP
Statement approved by Council on 4 March 2020 be amended to the method as set out
in Appendix 4 of the Cabinet report.

7.

Approve the Treasury Management Policy Statement and Treasury Management
Practices as set out in Appendix 6 of the Cabinet report.

8.

Approve that authority continues to be delegated to the Director of Finance to amend the
Treasury Management Policy and Practices and any corresponding changes required to
the Treasury Management Strategy, the Prudential and Treasury Management
Indicators, the Investment Strategy and the Annual MRP Statement to ensure they
remain aligned. Any amendments will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Resources
and Cabinet (Resources) Panel as appropriate.

9.

Approve that authority continues to be delegated to the Director of Finance to lower the
minimum sovereign rating in the Annual Investment Strategy, in the event of the UK’s
credit rating being downgraded by the third credit rating agency, due to the
unprecedented impact of Covid-19 on the economy.

Cabinet recommendations from the 2021-2022 Budget and Medium Term Financial
Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024
1.

The net budget requirement for 2021-2022 of £258.5 million for General Fund services
(paragraph 10.1 of the Cabinet report).

2.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021-2022 to 2023-2024 as detailed in
Table 4 and the budget preparation parameters underpinning the MTFS as detailed in
Appendix 2 of the Cabinet report.

3.

A Council Tax for Council services in 2021-2022 of £1,765.49 for a Band D property,
being an increase of 4.99% on 2020-2021 levels, which incorporates the 3% increase in
relation to Adult Social Care, in line with Government expectations. (paragraph 8.4, Table
1 of the Cabinet report).

Page 14

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.

That work starts on developing budget reductions and income generation proposals for
2022-2023 onwards in line with the Five Year Financial Strategy (paragraph 10.5 of the
Cabinet report).

5.

Revisions to the local council tax support scheme (paragraph 8.7 of the Cabinet report).

Council Tax formal resolutions for 2021-2022:
The resolution as follows:
1. That it be noted that the Council Tax base for the year 2021-2022 is calculated at
63,580.55 (Item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, as amended (the “Act”), as reported to Cabinet on 20 January 2021.
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 2021-2022
is £112,251,000.
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2021-2022 in accordance with
Sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended:
(a) £642,718,000

being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for
the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act.

(b) £530,467,000

being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for
the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(c) £112,251,000

being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above exceeds the
aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance
with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax requirement for the
year. (Item R in the formula in Section 31B of the Act).

(d) £1,765.49

being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T
(section 1 above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the
year (including Parish precepts).

(e) £0

being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish precepts)
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

(f) £1,765.49

being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by dividing the
amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic
amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of
its area to which no Parish precept relates.

Page 15

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4. To note that West Midlands Police and Fire Authorities have issued precepts to the
Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for
each category of dwellings in the Council’s area as indicated in the table below.
Precepting Authority

A
6/9

West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority

B
7/9

Valuation Band
D
E
9/9
11/9

C
8/9

F
13/9

G
15/9

H
18/9

42.02

49.03

56.03

63.04

77.04

91.05

105.06

126.07

West Midlands Police and Crime Commissioner

118.37

138.09

157.82

177.55

217.01

256.46

295.92

355.10

Total Precepts

160.39

187.12

213.85

240.59

294.05

347.51

400.98

481.17

5. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the tables as the amounts of
Council Tax for 2021-2022 for each part of its area and for each of the categories of
dwellings.
A
6/9

B
7/9

C
8/9

Valuation Band
D
E
9/9
11/9

City of Wolverhampton Council

1,177.00

1,373.16

1,569.33

1,765.49

2,157.82

2,550.15

2,942.49

3,530.98

Total Billing

1,177.00

1,373.16

1,569.33

1,765.49

2,157.82

2,550.15

2,942.49

3,530.98

Billing Authority

F
13/9

G
15/9

H
18/9

6. That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at (3) (f) and (4)
above, the City Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of the Council Tax
for the year 2021-2022 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:
Authority
Total Precepts

A
6/9

B
7/9

C
8/9

Valuation Band
D
E
9/9
11/9

F
13/9

G
15/9

H
18/9

160.39

187.12

213.85

240.59

294.05

347.51

400.98

481.17

Total Billing

1,177.00

1,373.16

1,569.33

1,765.49

2,157.82

2,550.15

2,942.49

3,530.98

Total Council Tax

1,337.39

1,560.28

1,783.18

2,006.08

2,451.87

2,897.66

3,343.47

4,012.15

7. That a notice of the amounts payable in respect of chargeable dwellings in each
valuation band for the year commencing on 1 April 2021 be published in at least one
local newspaper and that in accordance with Section 3(2) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, this notice shall also make reference to the National Non-Domestic
Rating Multiplier set by the Secretary of State, and specify that the Council Tax and the
non-domestic rate demands are annual demands which cover the full financial year.
8. The Council has determined that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2021-2022
is not excessive in accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local
Government Finance Act 1992.
9. As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a major precepting authority
that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2021-2022 is excessive and that the
billing authority is not required to hold a referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Page 16

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Recommendations for noting:
The Council is asked to note:
Cabinet recommendations from the Treasury Management Strategy 2021-2022

1.

That the MRP charge for the financial year 2021-2022 will be £18.2 million; it is forecast
to increase to £25.5 million in 2022-2023 (paragraph 2.14 of the Cabinet report).

2.

That Cabinet or Cabinet (Resources) Panel and Council will receive regular Treasury
Management reports during 2021-2022 on performance against the key targets and
Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators in the Treasury Management Strategy
and Investment Strategy as set out in paragraph 2.12 and Appendices 2 and 3 of the
Cabinet report.

Page 17

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to obtain Full Council approval for the annual capital budget,
treasury management strategy and revenue budget, as recommended by Cabinet and to
pass the statutory formal Council Tax resolutions.

2.0

Background

2.1

The Council’s revenue and capital budgets together with the treasury management
strategy require approval by Full Council on an annual basis. In addition to this, Full
Council has to pass statutory resolutions in respect of Council Tax before the
commencement of each financial year.

3.0

Reports

3.1

The budget setting information and recommendations from Cabinet are set out in the
relevant reports to Cabinet which were presented on 17 February 2021:

3.2

A.

Capital Programme 2020-2021 to 2024-2025 Quarter Three Review and 20212022 to 2025-2026 Budget Strategy

B.

2021-2022 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024

Cabinet recommendations in relation to the treasury management strategy are set out in
the report to Cabinet which was presented on 17 February 2021:
A.

3.3

The setting of the Council Tax Base is set out in the report to Cabinet which was
presented on 20 January 2021:
A.

3.4

Treasury Management Strategy 2021-2022

Council Tax Base, Business Rates (NDR) Net Rate Yield 2021-2022, Provisional
Local Government Finance Settlement Update and Outcome of Scrutiny Review

Copies of the report have been supplied to Councillors and can also be accessed online
on the Council’s website via the following links:
Cabinet - 17 February 2021
Cabinet – 20 January 2021

4.0

Financial implications

4.1

The financial implications of all the recommendations are included in the relevant Cabinet
reports referenced in this report.

Page 18

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.0

Legal implications

5.1

The legal implications of all the recommendations are included in the relevant Cabinet
reports referenced in this report.

6.0

Equalities implications

6.1

The equalities implications of all the recommendations are included in the relevant
Cabinet reports referenced in this report.

7.0

All other Implications

7.1

The all other implications of all the recommendations are included in the relevant Cabinet
reports referenced in this report.

8.0

Schedule of background papers

8.1

Cabinet, 17 February 2021, Capital Programme 2020-2021 to 2024-2025 Quarter Three
Review and 2021-2022 to 2025-2026 Budget Strategy
Cabinet, 17 February 2021, Treasury Management Strategy 2021-2022
Cabinet, 17 February 2021, 2021-2022 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy
2021-2022 to 2023-2024
Cabinet, 20 January 2021, Council Tax Base, Business Rates (NDR) Net Rate Yield
2021-2022, Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement Update and Outcome of
Scrutiny Review

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Meeting of the City Council
3 March 2021
Report title

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019/2020

Referring body

Audit and Risk Committee

Councillor to present
report

Councillor Alan Butt

Wards affected

All Wards

Cabinet Member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Louise Miles
Cabinet Member for Resources

Accountable director

Claire Nye, Director of Finance

Originating service

Audit

Accountable employee

Peter Farrow
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Audit and Risk Committee

Head of Audit
01902554460
Peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk
28 September 2020

Recommendation for decision:
The Council is recommended to:
1. Approve the contents of the 2019-2020 Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report.

Page 21

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

This report summarises the main areas of work undertaken by the Audit and Risk
Committee during 2019-2020.

2.0

Background

2.1

On 28 September 2020 Audit and Risk Committee considered a report on Audit and Risk
Committee Annual Report 2019-2020.

2.2

Copies of the report have been supplied to Councillors and can also be accessed online
on the Council’s website here.

2.3

Audit and Risk Committee recommended to Council:
1. That the Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report for 2019-2020 be endorsed and
referred to Full Council for approval.

3.0

Audit and Risk Committee

3.1

The purpose of the Audit and Risk Committee is to provide independent assurance on
the adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal control environment. It
provides an independent review of the governance, risk management and control
frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual governance processes. It
oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure efficient and effective
assurance arrangements are in place.

3.2

The Audit and Risk Committee work programme continues to be developed and
presented at regular meetings of the Committee.

4.0

Financial implications

4.1

The financial implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report of 28
September 2020.

5.0

Legal implications

5.1

The legal implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report of 28
September 2020.

6.0

Equalities implications

6.1

The equalities implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report of 28
September 2020.

Page 22

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7.0

Climate change and environmental implications

7.1

The climate change and environmental implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk
Committee report of 28 September 2020.

8.0

Human resources implications

8.1

The human resources implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report of
28 September 2020.

9.0

Corporate Landlord implications

9.1

The Corporate Landlord implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report
of 28 September 2020.

10.0

Covid implications

10.1

The Covid implications are detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report of 28
September 2020.

11.0

Schedule of background papers

11.1

Audit and Risk Committee – Annual Report 2019-2020 – 28 September 2020.

12.0

Appendices

12.1

Appendix 1: Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019-2020.

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

CITY OF
WOLVERHAMPTON
C O U N C I L

Appendix 1

Audit and Risk Committee
Annual Report
2019 - 2020

wolverhampton.gov.uk

Page 25

Introduction

1
Introduction
Who we are
The Audit and Risk Committee is a key component of the Council’s
corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level
focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that
underpin good governance and ﬁnancial standards.

Membership
Clockwise from top left
Councillor Alan Butt (Chair) Labour
Councillor Jonathan Yardley (Vice-Chair) Conservative
Councillor Mary Bateman Labour
Councillor Philip Bateman MBE Labour
Councillor Barbara McGarrity QN Labour
Councillor Craig Collingswood Labour
Councillor Roger Lawrence Labour
Councillor Lynne Moran Labour

We are also delighted that we
have two highly experienced
Independent Members who
bring a level of independent
challenge and outside
perspective to the Committee,
and we particularly thank them
for volunteering their time:
Mike Ager
John Humphries

Page 26
2 City of Wolverhampton Council

Introduction

What we do
One of the key roles of Audit and Risk Committee is to provide
independent assurance to the Council on the adequacy of the
risk management framework and the internal control environment.
It provides independent review of the governance, risk
management and control frameworks and oversees the ﬁnancial
reporting and annual governance processers.

The impact of Covid-19 on the Committee
As our last meeting of the ﬁnancial year took place on 23 March 2020
we were lucky enough to be able to conclude most of our annual
business just before the nationwide lockdown came into effect.
Throughout 2020-2021 the Committee will maintain a focus on how the
Council has managed the risks associated with the impact of Covid-19.

Page 27
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 3

Introduction

From our examination of the Council’s Risk Register and where control
issues are raised by our internal and external auditors, we summon
senior Council ofﬁcers to justify and answer questions on what actions
are being taken to improve matters and how risks are being managed.
Our ability to have access to all Council activities is a powerful
tool and during the year we questioned senior ofﬁcers on a diverse
range of high-proﬁle issues, including:

Cyber Security
The Head of ICT gave an overview of action the Council was taking
and proposed to take to mitigate and manage the strategic risk on
cyber security. Members of the Committee welcomed the
information and assurance provided on how the Council was
managing its cyber security, and particularly that the council’s
processes were being externally tested to ensure that the Council
was as fully protected as it could be.

Civic Halls

Business Continuity

Throughout the year progress on
the various stages of the Civic
Halls refurbishment programme,
including the awarding of the
latest contract, the budget
position and the move into the
second phase of construction,
was subject to close monitoring
by members of the Committee,
with a range of challenging
questions being put to ofﬁcers.

The Committee heard from
the Director of Public Health
on how business continuity
planning was progressing
across the Council, and
considered what Brexit related
risks would arise as a result of
the UK leaving the EU.

Page 28
4 City of Wolverhampton Council

Introduction

During the year the
Committee also held
more detailed discussion
around the strategic
risks to the Council
associated with the
following:

Close attention was also given to the following
areas where internal audit had issued limited
assurance reports (i.e. control areas needing
signiﬁcant improvement) during the year.
Where appropriate senior ofﬁcers for these
areas were called to attend the Committee in
order to demonstrate how they would ensure
that improvements would be made:
• Fire Safety in Council Buildings
• Fleet Services – Vehicle Spares and
Stock Management
• Business Continuity Arrangements

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Waste Services

• Employee Driver Checks
The Committee also oversees the operational
work of both the internal and external auditors,
helping to ensure that efﬁcient and effective
assurance arrangements are in place. The key
beneﬁts of the Committee can be seen as:
• increasing public conﬁdence in the
objectivity and fairness of ﬁnancial and
other reporting;

City Centre
Regeneration

• reinforcing the importance and
independence of internal and external audit
and similar review processes;
• providing additional assurance through a
process of independent review; and
• raising awareness of the need for internal
control and the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Page 29
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 5

Introduction

The Audit and Risk Committee agrees a work
programme for each year. It is based on (but not
limited to) the following main sources of assurance:

6
Annual Governance
Statement

Strategic Risk
Register and
Assurance Map

This is the statutory
report which the
Committee approves
in relation to the
council’s Statement
of Accounts.

A regular review of the
key risks the Council
faces, and how and
where the Committee
can gain assurance
that these risks are
being well managed.

Internal Audit

External Audit

The ongoing work of,
and reports from the
Council’s internal
auditors.

The reports submitted
to the Committee by
the Council’s external
auditors Grant
Thornton

I believe it has been another successful year for the
Audit and Risk Committee and we look forward to
building on this during 2019-2020.
Finally, as the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee
I would like to thank all the members who served on
the Committee during the year, both the internal and
external auditors and all of the other ofﬁcers who have
contributed towards its success.

Councillor Alan Butt
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

Page 30
6 City of Wolverhampton Council

Introduction

Page 31
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 7

Our role in helping to prevent and detect fraud

2
Our role in helping to prevent and
detect fraud
The Council is committed to creating and maintaining an
environment where fraud, corruption and bribery will not be
tolerated. This message is made clear within our Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Policy, which states: “The Council operates a zero tolerance on fraud,
corruption and bribery whereby all instances will be investigated, and the
perpetrator(s) will be dealt with in accordance with established policies.
Action will be taken to recover all monies stolen from the Council.”
The counter fraud agenda is one that continues to also hold signiﬁcant
prominence from Central Government who continue to promote a wide
range of counter fraud activities and initiatives.

National picture
During the year we received CIPFA’s latest Annual Fraud
and Corruption Tracker Report for 2019. The national
report identiﬁed that in 2018-2019, an estimated
71,000 fraud cases worth £253m were detected or
prevented by local authorities. Council Tax fraud, such as
falsely claiming the single occupancy discount, was the
most common fraud type with 55,855 cases detected
with a total value of £30.6m. Housing scams were the
highest value fraud at £135.6m with 3,622 cases,
while Blue Badge fraud was third and Business Rates
fraud remained the fourth largest area at risk of fraud.
The report also highlighted a number of national
emerging risks. There were 480 Adult Social Care
cases worth £13.7m, which includes direct payment fraud.
Procurement fraud, such as overcharging and falsely billing for goods and
services, is seen as one of the greatest areas of fraud risk. The number of
procurement fraud cases was 125 with an estimated value of £20.0m.

Page 32
8 City of Wolverhampton Council

Our role in helping to prevent and detect fraud

One of the roles of the Committee, and one in which it places a great deal
of importance, is to review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm
to the Council from fraud and corruption along with monitoring the counterfraud strategy, actions and resources.
We receive regular reports from the Counter Fraud team which provide us
with updates on a range of fraud related activities including:
• Ongoing fraud investigations across the Council
• Outcomes from tenancy fraud, subletting and right to buy investigations
• Results from the Cabinet Ofﬁces National Fraud Initiative
• Latest national fraud benchmarking reports and how the Council
responds to them
• Progress made against the fraud action plan
• Review of the Council’s Fraud Risk Register
We use our time at the committee to consider all of the above, and to
provide the appropriate challenge where necessary in order to ensure
ourselves and the wider Council that we are doing everything we can to
prevent and detect fraud.

Page 33
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 9

Key developments

3
Key developments

Our work is focussed in high-risk areas and one of our roles is to help
inspire public conﬁdence in the Council. Our meetings are open to the
Public so they are able to witness in person the challenge we bring,
and we also regularly obtain positive coverage in the local media,
again re-enforcing the message that we as a Council will not accept
fraudulent activities, and that our role helps to ensure that emerging risks
and developments are being robustly managed.

Page 34
10 City of Wolverhampton Council

Key developments



• We continued to focus on the Council’s risk management
arrangements, gaining an increased assurance that the
Council is managing its risks well and retaining the option of
‘calling-in’ risks and their risk owners, for a more detailed
review as deemed appropriate.
• We maintained a strong working relationship, through regular
progress meetings, with the Council’s External Auditors Grant
Thornton, our Internal Auditors and Senior Ofﬁcers. We also
had further engagement with Grant Thornton, through regular
consideration of their informative Audit Committee Update
publications at Committee meetings.
• We began to receive regular updates from the relevant
directors who were invited to attend the committee, in areas
where internal audit had issued limited assurance reports.

Page 35
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 11

Key developments

6
Our key business during the year,
by meeting, was:
10 June 2019

20 January 2020

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

The Council’s Draft Statement of Accounts
External Audit Progress Report and Update
Annual Governance Statement
Annual Internal Audit Report
Annual Audit and Risk Committee Report
Strategic Risk Register and Strategic
Assurance Map
CIPFA Technical Update
Payment Transparency
Counter Fraud Update
Investigations Update

External Audit Progress Report and Update
External Audit Communication
Strategic Risk Register and Assurance Map
Tendering Procedures for Major Projects
Annual Governance Statement –
Action Plan Update
Internal Audit Update
Counter Fraud Update
Audit Investigations Update
Payment Transparency

•
•
•
•

22 July 2019

23 March 2020

• Audited Statement of Accounts
• TMO Audit Review Update

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

External Audit Certiﬁcation Work
External Audit Plan
Strategic Risk Register and Assurance Map
Internal Audit Plan 2020-2021
Internal Audit Update
Counter Fraud Update
Audit and Risk Committee –
Terms of Reference Annual Review
• Payment Transparency
• CIPFA Audit Committee Update
• Audit Investigations Update

31 July 2019
• Audit Statement of Accounts Update
• CIPFA Audit Committee Update
• Audit Investigations Update
16 September 2019
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Annual External Audit Letter
Strategic Risk Register and Assurance Map
Internal Audit Update
Internal Audit Charter – Annual Review
Payment Transparency
Counter Fraud Update
CIFA Technical Update

Audit and Risk Committee Training Sessions
As part of the above, members of the Committee attended
two training sessions hosted by the Finance team in August
and September. The Committee would like to pass on our
thanks to the members of the Finance team who delivered
this training, in what were two very informative sessions.

As can be seen from the above, we are responsible for reviewing and approving the formal
publication of the Annual Statement of Accounts, as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations.
These are a very complex and comprehensive set of accounts, and we appreciate the time and support of
both the external auditors and the Council’s Finance Ofﬁcers in this task.

Page 36
12 City of Wolverhampton Council

Conclusions for 2019 - 2020

4
Conclusions for 2019 - 2020
As a result of our work throughout the year, we were able
to conﬁrm:
• That the system of internal control, governance and risk management
in the Council was adequate in identifying risks and allowing the
Council to understand the appropriate management of these risks.
• That there were no areas of signiﬁcant duplication or omission in the
systems of internal control, governance and risk management that
had come to the Committee’s attention, and had not been
adequately resolved.
We believe that our key achievements during the year were:
• Providing assurance through a process of independent review
and challenge.
• Raising the proﬁle of internal control issues across the Council and of
the need to ensure that audit recommendations are implemented.
• Regular consideration and review of the risks that the Council faces,
through examination of the strategic risk register and accompanying
assurance map.
• Maintaining a good working relationship with the Council’s internal
and external auditors.
• Building the skills and knowledge of Committee members through
regular technical updates and the consideration of related guidance
issued by CIPFA.
• The presence of two independent members serving on the
Committee in order to broaden the Committee’s experience and
independent view point.
• Maintaining a detailed focus on the actions being taken to
combat fraud.
• Reviewing and updating the Committee’s Terms of Reference in
order to ensure they remain ﬁt for purpose.

Page 37
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 13

Terms of reference

5
Terms of reference
Statement of purpose
Our Audit and Risk Committee is a key component of the Council’s
corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level
focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that
underpin good governance and ﬁnancial standards.
The purpose of our Audit and Risk Committee is to provide independent
assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk management
framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent
review of the governance, risk management and control frameworks and
oversees the ﬁnancial reporting and annual governance processers.
It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure efﬁcient and
effective assurance arrangements are in place.

Page 38
14 City of Wolverhampton Council

Terms of reference

Governance, risk and control
To review the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements against
the good governance framework
and consider annual governance
reports and assurances.
To review the annual governance
statement prior to approval and
consider whether it properly reﬂects
the risk environment and supporting
assurances, taking into account
internal audit’s opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s framework of governance,
risk management and control.
To consider the Council’s
arrangements to secure value for
money and review assurances and
assessments on the effectiveness of
these arrangements.
To monitor the counter-fraud
strategy, actions and resources.

To consider the Council’s framework
of assurance and ensure that it
adequately addresses the risks and
priorities of the Council.
To monitor the effective
development and operation of risk
management in the Council.
To monitor progress in addressing
risk-related issues reported to the
committee.
To consider reports on the
effectiveness of internal controls and
monitor the implementation of
agreed actions.
To review the assessment of fraud
risks and potential harm to the
Council from fraud and corruption.
To review the governance and
assurance arrangements for signiﬁcant
partnerships or collaborations.

Page 39
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 15

Terms of reference

Internal Audit
To approve the internal audit
charter.
To review proposals made in
relation to the appointment of
external providers of internal
audit services and to make
recommendations.
To approve the risk based internal
audit plan, including internal
audit’s resource requirements,
the approach to using other
sources of assurance and any
work required to place reliance
upon those other sources.
To approve signiﬁcant interim
changes to the risk-based internal
audit plan and resource
requirements.
To make appropriate enquiries of
both management and the head of
internal audit to determine if there
are any inappropriate scope or
resource limitations.

To consider reports from the head
of internal audit on internal audit’s
performance during the year,
including the performance of
external providers of internal audit
services. These will include:
• Updates on the work of internal
audit including key ﬁndings,
issues of concern and action in
hand as a result of internal
audit work;
• Regular reports on the results
of the quality assurance and
improvement programme;
• Reports on instances where the
internal audit function does not
conform to the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards and
Local Government Application
Note, considering whether the
non-conformance is signiﬁcant
enough that it must be included
in the annual governance
statement.

To consider any impairments to
independence or objectivity arising
from additional roles or
responsibilities outside of internal
auditing of the head of internal
audit. To approve and periodically
review safeguards to limit such
impairments.

Page 40
16 City of Wolverhampton Council

Terms of reference

To consider the head of internal
audit’s annual report:

To consider summaries of speciﬁc
internal audit reports as requested.

• The statement of the level of
conformance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards
and Local Government
Application Note and the results
of the quality assurance and
improvement programme that
supports the statement - these
will indicate the reliability of the
conclusions of internal audit.

To receive reports outlining the
action taken where the head of
internal audit has concluded that
management has accepted a level
of risk that may be unacceptable
to the authority or there are
concerns about progress with the
implementation of agreed actions.

• The opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of
the Council’s framework of
governance, risk management
and control together with the
summary of the work
supporting the opinion - these
will assist the committee in
reviewing the annual
governance statement.

To contribute to the quality
assurance and improvement
programme and in particular, to
the external quality assessment of
internal audit that takes place at
least once every ﬁve years.
To consider a report on the
effectiveness of internal audit to
support the annual governance
statement, where required to
do so by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations.
To provide free and unfettered
access to the audit committee
chair for the head of internal audit,
including the opportunity for a
private meeting with the
committee.

Page 41
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 17

Terms of reference

External Audit

£

To support the independence
of external audit through
consideration of the external
auditor’s annual assessment of
its independence and review
of any issues raised by PSAA
or the authority’s auditor panel
as appropriate.

To consider speciﬁc reports as
agreed with the external auditor.

To consider the external auditor’s
annual letter, relevant reports, and
the report to those charged with
governance.

To advise and recommend on the
effectiveness of relationships
between external and internal
audit and other inspection
agencies or relevant bodies.

To comment on the scope and
depth of external audit work and
to ensure it gives value for money.
To commission work from internal
and external audit.

Financial reporting
To receive detailed training in
respect of the process associated
with the preparation, sign off, audit
and publication of the Council’s
annual statement of accounts.
To monitor the on-going progress
towards publication of the
Council’s annual statement of
accounts, ensuring the statutory
deadlines are achieved.
To obtain explanations for all
signiﬁcant variances between
planned and actual expenditure to
the extent that it impacts on the
annual statement of accounts.

To review the annual statement of
accounts. Speciﬁcally, to consider
whether appropriate accounting
policies have been followed and
whether there are concerns
arising from the ﬁnancial
statements or from the audit that
need to be brought to the
attention of the Council.
To consider the external auditor’s
report to those charged with
governance on issues arising from
the audit of the accounts.

Page 42
18 City of Wolverhampton Council

Terms of reference

Accountability arrangements
To report to those charged with
governance on the committee’s
ﬁndings, conclusions and
recommendations concerning the
adequacy and effectiveness of
their governance, risk
management and internal control
frameworks, ﬁnancial reporting
arrangements, and internal and
external audit functions.

To report to full Council on a
regular basis on the committee’s
performance in relation to the
terms of reference, and the
effectiveness of the committee in
meeting its purpose.
To publish an annual report on the
work of the Committee.

Page 43
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Audit and Risk Committee Annual Report 2019 - 2020 19

wolverhampton.gov.uk 01902 551155
WolverhamptonToday

Wolverhampton_Today

City of Wolverhampton Council, Civic Centre, St. Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1SH

Page 44

@WolvesCouncil

WCC 2071 11/20

You can get this information in large print, braille,
audio or in another language by calling 01902 551155

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 8

Meeting of the City Council
3 March 2021
Report title

Decisions Made Under Urgent Action Powers

Referring body

N/A

Councillor to present
report

Councillor Ian Brookfield

Wards affected

All Wards

Cabinet Member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Ian Brookfield
Leader of the Council

Accountable director

David Pattison, Director of Governance

Originating service

Governance

Accountable employee

Jaswinder Kaur
Tel
Email

Democratic Services Manager
01902 550320
jaswinder.kaur@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been
considered by

Recommendation for decision:
The Council is recommended to:
1. To note all the decisions made under the Council’s Urgent Action Powers.

Page 45

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform the Council of decisions taken under the Council’s
Urgent Action Powers since the last Council meeting.

2.0

Background

2.1

In the light of the Covid-19 situation the Council had to, as a result of the Government’s
decision on restriction of movement, cancel all Council/Committee meetings until
legislation was in place, which allowed remote meetings, and then once that was in place
meetings were reintroduced on a phased basis with the first Council meeting since 3
March 2020 taking place on 16 September 2020. In the intervening period the Council’s
urgent action powers had to be used for any decisions that had to be taken and could not
be deferred. These powers were used sparingly and the guiding principles for any
decisions were that:

2.2



only those decisions that have to be made (i.e. as a result of Covid-19 or
related matters, including support of businesses in this difficult time or as a
result of an immovable deadline) would be made.



the decisions would be made available on a regular basis to Councillors
through the update to Councillors and in any event through a weekly roundup
of the decisions made through the relevant pages on the Council’s website so
that the Public can access them.



the decisions made would be reported to the next available Council

The relevant powers under the Constitution are:
Council Decision
6.10 Urgent Decisions outside the Budget or Policy Framework
An urgent decision which is contrary to the Policy Framework or budget adopted by the
Council may be taken by the Cabinet if the Chair of the Scrutiny Board agrees that the
decision is urgent. If no such Chair is available (or willing) then the Mayor or in his/her
absence the Deputy Mayor may agree that it is urgent before a decision is taken.
6.11 Cabinet Decision
Where an urgent decision on a matter delegated to the Cabinet is required but it is not
feasible to arrange a meeting of the Cabinet, the appropriate Director, in conjunction with
the Head of Paid Service is authorised to take the appropriate urgent action provided that
the action shall have first been discussed with and approved in writing by the Leader (or
in the Leader’s absence, the Deputy Leader) and two other Cabinet Members and the
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Board or their nominees.

Page 46

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The written authorisation must include details of the proposal and the justification for the
course of action. Expenditure must be within existing budgets. Any action taken under
this rule must be reported to the next available meeting of the Cabinet for information.
Such decisions will not be subject to the usual Call In procedures set out in Part 4,
although they may be examined after implementation to determine whether the
justification for the course of action was appropriate.
2.3

This report sets out the decisions that have been made using the Urgent Action powers
under the Constitution since last reported to Full Council on 16 September 2020.

3.0

Urgent Action Powers

3.1

The table below details all the decisions taken under the Council’s Urgent Action Power’s
since last reported to Full Council on 16 September 2020:

Part 1 – Open Items
Our Council
Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
09 October 2020
Alison Shannon
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 554561
Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Stephen Simkins
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
Amendments to Council Budget and decisions related to Council actions as
result of Covid-19
1. Established supplementary revenue expenditure budgets totaling £174,265 for
the enforcement surge funding fully funded by Government Grant to support
the financial implications of increased enforcement on Covid compliance.
2. Established supplementary revenue budgets totaling £198,000, fully funded by
the Next Steps Accommodation Programme for continuing to support rough
sleepers supported during the Covid response.
3. Established supplementary revenue budgets totaling £273,765.47 fully funded
by Government Grant for the new test and Trace Payment scheme.
4. Agreed payments to individuals under the new Test and Trace Support
Payment scheme who have tested positive for Covid-19 and their close
contacts, in line with Government Guidance in line with the information in
section 2 of the report.
5. Approved the Council extending the grant agreement already in place between
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and
CQC registered care providers in the city together with any ancillary
documents necessary for the Council to receive Infection Prevention Control
Grant.
6. Approved an increase of £3.0 million to the supplementary budget of £3.3m
created on 16 June 2020 and expenditure in line with the grant terms and
conditions. The additional monies are fully funded by the Adult Social Care

Page 47

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Infection Prevention Ring Fenced Grant Round 2, October 2020 – March 2021
provided by MHCLG. This funding will be paid as a Section 31 grant ring
fenced exclusively for actions which support CQC registered care homes and
community care providers mainly to tackle the risk of Covid19 infections and is
in addition to funding already received. 80% of the ring-fenced grant must
transfer directly to CQC registered Care Homes and Providers in the city (2403
beds in total and 2281 in receipt of community care) and 20% spent by the
local authority in line with grant conditions.
7. Approved the proposed communication and process for allocation and
monitoring of 80% of the grant funding to Care Homes and Providers in line
with the grant conditions as set out in section 3.
8. Approved the plan for the allocation of the 20% of grant funding to the
Wolverhampton System in line with the grant conditions as set out in section 3.
9. Endorsed the contract entered into for the supply of additional PPE gloves to
ensure a continuous supply of gloves for health and safety purposes for the
Council and partners for £330,000.

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
23 October 2020
Alison Shannon
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 554561
Councillor Linda Leach
Councillor Stephen Simkins
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
Amendments to Council Budget and decisions related to Council actions as
result of Covid-19
1. Established supplementary expenditure budgets totalling £6.118 million funded
by the COVID 19 Emergency Funding for Local Government Grant to support
additional costs and loss of income relating to COVID 19.
2. Established supplementary expenditure budgets totalling approximately
£790,000 funded by the Contain Outbreak Management Fund from
Government. The budget would be established when the grant total is formally
confirmed by government.
3. Established supplementary expenditure budgets totalling £117,430 funded by
the Department of Transport to support the additional costs of home to school
transport due to Covid 19.
4. Delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in consultation with
the Director of Finance to approve all virements required to support the
additional costs and loss of income relating to COVID 19.
5. Approved the free School meal scheme for children in need in the City of
Wolverhampton for the October half term as set out in paragraph 2.13 – 2.19
with an approximate cost of £250,000.

Page 48

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
09 November 2020
Alison Shannon
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 554561
Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Louise Miles
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
Urgent decisions relating to November lockdown and budget decisions related
to Council actions as result of Covid-19
1. Agreed to the approach detailed in paragraphs 2.1 – 2.4 regarding the use of
Urgent Decisions during the period for which the restrictions in the Health
Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 4) Regulations 2020
remain in force.
2. Established supplementary expenditure budgets as follows (and agreed the
use of the grants where stated):
2.1. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£127,000 fully funded Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Individuals grant and
delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources in consultation
with the Director of Finance to approve any virements for this use of this
grant.
2.2. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£4,000,302 funded by Local Restrictions Support Grants (Sector) and
(Closed) Addendum and delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for
Resources in consultation with the Director of Finance to agree to the
payment of eligible business grants by the Council, in line with Government
guidance.
2.3. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£5,267,140 funded by the Additional Restrictions Grant and delegated
authority to agree the distribution of discretionary business grants to the
Cabinet Member for Resources and the Cabinet Member for City Economy
in consultation with the Director of Finance and the Director of
Regeneration in line with Government guidance.
2.4. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£1,044,531 funded by the Local Restriction Support Grant (Open) funding
from Government to support businesses that have suffered a reduction in
demand as a result of the Local Authority being placed in Tier 2 (High).
Delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources and the Cabinet
Member for City Economy in consultation with the Director of Finance to
agree the distribution of discretionary businesses grants in line with
Government guidelines.
2.5. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£19,000 funded by the Department of Transport to support the additional
costs of home to school transport due to Covid-19. This takes the revised
approved budget to £136,430.
2.6. Accepted the funding from Government under the Contained Outbreak
Management Fund under which Local authorities will receive a one-off
payment of £8 per head to support the wider measures to protect public
health and local economies. Delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for
Resources, in consultation with the Director of Finance to build in

Page 49

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

supplementary revenue budgets once the grant allocation has been
confirmed and make any payments in line with government guidelines and
approve any necessary virements.
2.7. Accepted the funding from Government under the new Winter Grants
Scheme for children and their families once the details of the scheme are
known and delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People and the Cabinet Member for Education and Skills Member
for Children and Young People, in consultation with the Director of
Children’s Services to make payments to any appropriate person in line
with Government guidance and approve any necessary virements, to tie in
with the collective support that the Council continues to provide to its
vulnerable residents.
2.8. Approved the following virements:
 Approved a virement totalling £290,000 to support Covid Support
Advisors for a period of six months funded by from the Enforcement
Surge funding (174,000), and Emergency Covid 19 Grant funding
(£116,000).
 Approved a virement of up to £230,000 for the appointment of 15
additional contact trace officers funded from the Test and Trace
(outbreak control) grant.
 Approved the virement of up to £415,000 for the appointment of
additional resources to support the grants to businesses. This will be
funded from the Covid 19 Emergency Funding.
 Approved the virement of £220,000 to provide welfare, debt and
benefits advice and support for residents. This will be funded from the
Covid-19 Emergency Funding.

Page 50

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
20 November 2020
Claire Nye
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 550478
Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Dr Mike Hardacre
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
2020-2021 - Capital Programme Quarter Two Review and Treasury
Management Mid Year Review and other urgent matters
1. Approved the revised medium-term General Revenue Account capital
programme of £299.9 million, an increase of £11.4 million from the previously
approved programme, and the change in associated resources.
2. Noted that a mid-year review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
has been undertaken and the Council has operated within the limits and
requirements approved in March 2020.
3. Noted that revenue underspends of £1.8 million for the General Revenue
Account and £682,000 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are forecast
from treasury management activities in 2020-2021, arising as a result of rephasing of the capital programme and lower interest rates forecast on
borrowing due to the impact on the economy of Covid-19.
4. Noted that two of the three credit rating agencies have downgraded the UK’s
credit rating. If the remaining credit rating agency follows suit the Director of
Finance will lower the minimum sovereign rating in the Annual Investment
Strategy in line with the delegated authority approved by Council on 17 July
2020.
5. That the Council appointed Emma Bennett as the interim Director of Adult
Social Services pending a review.
6. That the Council agreed to the extension of the Regional Mortuary Provision
from March 2021 to August 2021 and delegated authority to the Director of
Governance to carry out the appropriate tasks in relation to amendment of the
existing contract.

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
17 December 2020
Claire Nye
Councillor Jonathan Crofts (with reservations)
01902 550478
Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Stephen Simkins
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
WV Living – equity investment
1. Approved investment of equity in WV Living, as set out in the Cabinet report of
16 December 2020, to support the business plan and the delivery of housing in
Wolverhampton and that the entering into of any ancillary agreements or
documents between the Council and WV Living arising out of the funding to
WV Living be delegated to the Cabinet Members for City Assets and Housing
and Resources in conjunction with the Chief Executive and the Director of
Finance (Section 151 Officer).

Page 51

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
25 January 2021
Alison Shannon
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 554561
Councillor Dr Mike Hardacre
Councillor Louise Miles
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
Urgent decisions relating to budget decisions related to Council actions as
result of Covid-19
1. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets fully funded by
Government Grants for mandatory business grant schemes and agreed to
make payments to eligible business grants, in line with Government Guidance
for the period up to 31 March 2021.
2. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets fully funded by
Government Grant for discretionary business grant schemes and delegated
authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources and the Cabinet Member for
City Economy, in consultation with the Director of Finance and the Director of
Regeneration to agree the distribution of discretionary business grants in line
with Government guidelines.
3. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets fully funded
by Government grant for the Community Testing Programme and delegated
authority to the Director of Public Health to make grant payments to third
party organisations facilitating tests on behalf of the Council.
4. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£282,730.14 fully funded by the Test and Trace Support Payment Grant and
make payments to individuals in line with Government guidelines.
5. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£474,923 fully funded by grant to support Covid Community Champions and
delegated authority to the Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing in
consultation to with Director of Public Health to approve any virements to
support expenditure including awarding grants to voluntary and community
organisations.
6. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£78,000 fully funded by grant to support Black Country Fostering project and
delegated authority to the Director of Children’s Services to approve any
virements to support activity.
7. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£768,415 fully funded by grant to support Rapid Testing for staff in care
settings and to support testing visiting professionals and approved that 80%
of the grant funding be allocated to care settings in line with the grant
conditions. Delegation authority to the Deputy Director for Adults, in
consultation with the Director of Public health, to approve the plan on behalf
of the council for the allocation of the 20% of grant funding in line with the
funding conditions.
8. Approved the establishment of supplementary revenue budgets totalling
£688,239 fully funded by grant to support work force capacity and delegated
authority to the Director of Children’s and Adult Services to allocate the grant
in line with the funding conditions.

Page 52

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9. Approved the establishment of further supplementary budgets where the
Council receives fully funded by Government Grant to the council to support
the costs of Covid until the 31 March 2021, and delegated authority to the
Cabinet Member for Resources and the relevant Cabinet Member, in
consultation with the Director of Finance and relevant Director, to approve all
virements required to support the additional costs and loss of income relating
to Covid 19.
10. Approved the Council entering into such grant agreements as are necessary
for the Council to receive the funding detailed above in paragraphs 1 – 9.

Decision maker
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Leader of the Council
03 February 2021
Claire Nye
Councillor Jonathan Crofts
01902 550478
Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Dr Mike Hardacre
Councillor Paul Sweet
Title and summary of decision
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021-2022 including Rent and
Service
1. Adopted the Business Plan set out at Appendix 1 to the report as the approved
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan including:
a. The revenue budget for 2021-2022 at Appendix 1 to the report.
b. The Capital Programme for 2021-2022 to 2025-2026 at Appendix 2 to the
report that
c. included the following among the proposed investment plans;
• £134.0 million for new build development
• £41.3 million provision for Estate Remodelling
• £3.6 million for a new programme for low and mid-rise infrastructure
replacement
• £2.0 million budget provision for conversion of commercial property to
residential to provide additional homes
• £44.5 million to complete the refurbishment of the Heath Town estate
• £86.5 million for programmes to high rise estates to include fire safety
improvements, infrastructure replacement, retrofitting of sprinklers and
external works.
2. Approved the implementation of an increase of 1.5% to social housing rents in
accordance with the Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 and to give 28 days
notice to all secure and introductory tenants of the rent increase from 1 April
2021.
3. Approved the rates for garage rents and service charges set out in Appendix 3
to the report and formally notified tenants.
4. Approved Management Allowances for Managing Agents as follows;
• Wolverhampton Homes - £39,425,000
• Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board - £1,720,000
• New Park Village Tenants Management Organisation - £383,000
• Springfield Horseshoe Tenants Management Organisation - £360,000
• Dovecotes Tenants Management Organisation - £1,113,000

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

